United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES REGISTRATION FORM

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations of eligibility for individual properties or districts. See instructions in <u>Guidelines for Completing National Register Bulletin 16</u>). Complete each Item by marking "x" in the appropriate box or by entering the requested information. If an item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For functions, styles, materials, and areas of significance, enter only the categories and subcategories listed in the instructions. For additional space use continuation sneets (Form 10-900a). Type all entries. Use letter quality printer in 12 pitch, using an 85 space line and a 10 space left margin. Use only archival paper (20 pound, acid free paper with a 2% alkaline reserve).

1. Name of Property			
nistoric name	Jung Snoe Manufacturii	ng Company Fact	ory
other names/site number	Jung Shoe Company; Sho	epoygan Shoe Co	mpany
2. Location			
street & number 620	South Eighth Street	N/A	not for publication
City, town She	ooygan	<u>N/A</u>	Vicinity
state Wisconsin code	WI county Sheboygan	<u>code 117</u>	zip code 53081
3. Classification			
Ownership or Property	Category of Property	No. or Kesou	rces within Property
<u>X</u> private	<u>X</u> ouilding(s)	contributing	noncontributing
public-local	aistrict		pullalngs
public-State	site		sites
public-Federal	structure		structures
	opject		opjects
			<u> </u>
Name of related multiple	property listing:	No. or contr previously 1 National Req	

1993

As the designated authority under the Natio				
as amended, I hereby certify that this \underline{X}				
of eligibility meets the documentation star		•		
National Register of Historic Places and me				
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.				
does not meet the National Register crit	teria.	see cont	inuation s	neet.
$\bigcap \mu \bigcap$				
(hel He.		1/	122/91	
Signature of Pertirying official		Date	1 17	***************************************
State Historic Preservation Officer- WI				
State or Federal agency and bureau				
		****	iama) Dami	
In my opinion, the propertymeetsdoc	es not meet	the Nat	ional Regi	ster
criteriaSee continuation sheet.				
Signature of commenting of other official		Date		
State or Federal agency and bureau				
• •				
				- 4° · 4
			intered 1	n this
			intered 1	n thi
1, nereby, certify that this property is:			intered 1	a teo Registre
i, nereby, certify that this property is: entered in the National Register.	Lila		rotered i	n this
1, nereby, certify that this property is:	Aclas	us of	rotered 1 Festional	a this Regulator
entered in the National Register. See continuation sheet	Aclas	usp	intered i	n tes Eschatus
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National	Aclas	us for	intered i	n 123 2521atr.
entered in the National Register. See continuation sheet	Aclas	uss	intered i	a this
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet See continuation sheet	Aclas	us E	intered 1 Entionel	a thi
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the	Aclas	usp	intered i	n this
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet See continuation sheet	Aclas	us je	intered i	n tes Esclatos
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the	Aclas	us E	intered i	
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register.	Aclas	us f	gen !	
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register. other, (explain:)			gen gen	
in energy, certify that this property is: entered in the National Register. See continuation sheet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register. other, (explain:)			gen gen	
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register. other, (explain:)	Aclas		gen gen	
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register. other, (explain:)			gen gen	
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register. other, (explain:)			gen gen	
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register. other, (explain:)		the Kee	gen gen	
entered in the National Register. See continuation sneet determined eligible for the National Register. See continuation sheet determined not eligible for the National Register. removed from the National Register. other, (explain:) for the National Register. other, (explain:) structions or Use Historic Functions	gnature of	the Kee	per per	Date
See continuation sneetdetermined eligible for the National RegisterSee continuation sheetdetermined not eligible for the National Register removed from the National Register other, (explain:) b. Functions or Use Historic Functions	gnature of	the Kee	per per	Date

,

/. Description		
Architectural Classification	Materiais	
(enter categories from instructions)	(enter categ	gories from instructions)
	foundation	Concrete
Classical Revival	Walls	Brick
	rooi	Aspnait
	other	Terra Cotta
		DOOW

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

<u>pescription</u>

The Jung Shoe Manuracturing Company factory is an exceptionally intact brick twostory industrial building whose earliest rectilinear plan portion was built in 1906 on the northern third of its iot to a design drawn by Shebbygan architect William C. Weeks. The immediate success of the new firm led to the construction of a two-story rectilinear plan Astylistic Utilitarian form addition along the remaining two-thirds of the Eighth Street end of the lot three years later, and in 1912 still another larger two-story rectilinear plan addition or identical design was added along the Virginia Avenue portion of the lot, resulting in the "U"-plan building that is the subject of this nomination. The large corner lot the factory occupies makes up the northwest corner of the intersection of South Eighth Street and Virginia Avenue in the city of Sheboygan. The principal facades of this building are sided in a browncolored brick and they race east onto Eighth Street and south onto Virginia Avenue. Because of the prominence of this corner fot and its proximity to the downtown business district located a block north on Eighth Street, the main facades were given a more architectural treatment than was usual for early twentieth century industrial buildings in Sheboygan. In particular, the main Eighth Street facade of the original building features elaborate Classical Revival style terra cotta ornamentation whose high quality is echoed by the elaborately panelled corporate offices that lie just benind. This large 59,000 square foot building served as a snoe ractory until 1988, when the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company finally closed its doors. Since then the building has stood vacant but it is still in excellent repair and the current owners intend to renapilitate it for nousing.

The city of Sheboygan is a port city located on the west shore of Lake Michigan at the mouth of the Sheboygan River and the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company factory is located at the southern end of the downtown business district of the city, a district whose southern boundary is formed by a large bend in the course of the eastwest rlowing Sheboygan River. Land in the center of this four-block-wide district is mostly riat except along its west and south edges, both or which slope down to the river. The south-sloping block on which the factory is located is bounded by Eighth Street on the east, South Water Street on the West, Jefrerson Avenue on the north, and Virginia Avenue on the south and the only other building on the block is the very large and now greatly altered Tudor Revival style Central High School building, which was built in 1921. The main facade of the factory faces east onto the north-south running Eighth Street, historically Sheboygan's principal commercial thoroughrare and one which originally ran uninterruptedly south across the Sheboygan River. In the 1980s, however, the original traffic pattern in this area was altered for the creation of the Plaza 8 redevelopment project, one of whose goals was to turn much of the downtown portion of Eighth Street into a pedestrian shopping mail. As a consequence, the Eighth Street-Jerrerson Avenue intersection was redesigned to

^{*} The 1990 population of Sheboygan was 48,085.

United States Department of the interior National Park Service

become the southern terminus of this mail. Eighth Street was then closed off just below Jefferson Avenue, forming a cul-de-sac, and Jefferson Avenue was vacated between Seventh and Ninth Streets. The latter two streets were then angled in a southerly direction so as to connect with the southerly continuance of Eighth Street, which resumes its southerly route just below the point of its former intersection with Jefferson Avenue and directly in front of the Jung Shoe factory.

The factory building is free-standing in design and the brick walls of the original building rest on cut stone foundation walls while those of the additions rest on a poured concrete foundation walls. The building is bounded by a large blacktopped parking lot on the north, by a hard-surfaced alley on the west and its east and south-facing facades abut the concrete sidewalks on Eighth Street and Jefferson Avenue. The east-facing main facade of the factory is two-stories in height, is thirteen bays-wide, and it rests on a raised basement story. The total width of the facade represents the combined facades of the fifty-foot-wide original building and of the one hundred-foot-wide 1909 addition, these facades being three-bays-wide and ten-bays-wide respectively.

The main Eighth Street facade of the original (north) building is two-stories in neight, is symmetrical in design, and it has two identical width bays (bays if & 13, reading from left to right) which flank a narrower center pay (pay 12) that contains the original entrance to the building in its first story. The entire facade rests on a dressed limestone-sneathed blinth base and the first story of this facade is enframed by this plinth, by four rusticated brick pliasters, and by a broad terra cotta-sheathed lintel or cornice. The entire pullding has a visible pasement story and as the site slopes down towards the Eighth Street-Virginia Avenue corner (the southwest corner or the Lot) more and more or this story is exposed. This basement story necessitated the placing of the centered entrance above grade and this entrance is reached by ascending a flight of three limestone steps, the topmost one of which serves as a landing for the paired main entrance doors. Flanking these steps are two limestone blocks that project out from the plinth. These blocks form enlarged bases upon which rest the simple canted limestone bases or the two pilasters that frame the entrance bay. Each of these pilasters is made of brown brick and these pilasters are rusticated for their full height and then surmounted by an elaborate terra cotta capital that features a simple neck, above which is a cavetto-snaped moiding decorated with stylized acanthus leaves. The capital is then terminated by a simple abacus and a single large cartouche is centered on the face of each capital.

within the entrance pay itself, fluted terra cotta-faced pilasters flank the paired entrance doors. The main entrance is treated as a classical design featuring doors that are surmounted by a semi-circular-arched pediment whose tympanum in this instance is filled with a large glass transom light. The entrance doors are modern metal and glass replacements for the original wood and glass doors and they are simple and unobstrusive in design and they each contain a single large light. These

United States Department or the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL	REGISTER	4 OF, HT?	STURIC PI	JACES				
CONTINUA	FION SHEE	7.1,						
Jung Sho	e Manutad	cturing	Company	Factory,	Sheboygan,	Sheboygan	County,	Wisconsin
Section i	number _	7	Page _	<u></u>				

inward-swinging doors are then surmounted by a modern single light oplong transom window that is also tramed in the same dark prown-colored metal as the doors. The terra cotta capitals of the flanking pliasters then support a large classical design terra cotta-sheathed trieze that acts as a linter above the doors and the transom. This trieze is surmounted by a row of dentils that is itself then surmounted by an ovoid-shaped molding decorated with a design known as echinus and astragal, being an egg and dart design with a bead and reel below it. A large single light stifted arch wooden sash transom light is then placed above the doors. This transom is original and it reatures an elaborate stifted terra cotta surround that takes the form of a curved entablature whose upper part is crowned by a molding decorated with an egg and dart design. A large terra cotta console bracket is then centered in the Keystone position of the surround and the spandrels panels that are placed between the extradoses of the surround and the linter above are covered in terra cotta and feature elaborate swag ornamentation.

The two flanking pays (Nos. 11 & 13) of the first story of the original building are Dotn identical to each other. Each bay is framed by the pilasters that frame the center pay and by a corresponding set of pilasters of identical design that are positioned at the ends or the facade. The slightly bowed pasement story or each of these pays consists of two pairs of small double hung, metal sash, one-over-onelight windows that are modern replacements of the same date and style as the entrance doors. The two windows in each of these pairs are separated from one another by a short, centered brick pilaster that has a cut stone base which is smaller than but identical to those at the root or the main pilasters. A partial pilaster of the same design also flanks the outer edge of each pair of windows and these small pilasters are then crowned by simple terra cotta capitals that support broad, bowed, terra cotta-sneathed cornices that act as sills for the first story windows above. The first story windows in each bay consist or a pair of large plate glass single light display type windows, each of which is then surmounted by a large, tixed, single light basket handle-arch-shaped transom. These window units are original and have wooden sash and the windows in each pair are separated from each other by a fluted, terra cotta-sheathed engaged ionic order column. - The first story is then terminated by a broad terra cotta-sheathed cornice, the frieze of Which has a thin bead and reel molding placed beneath it and a broad ovolo-shaped molding decorated with an echinus and astragal design placed above.

The second story of the main racade of the original pullding is faced in prown prick and it is also three-pays-wide, the width of each pay corresponding to the width of the pay in the story pelow. The center pay originally contained a single window unit consisting or a large plate glass single light window that was surmounted by a

⁺ The left-hand pair of first-story windows (pay No. 11) light the sample room of the factory. The right-hand windows (pay No. 13) light two private offices that were originally occupied by the principal executive officers of the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company.

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES		
CONTINUATION SHEET		
Jung Snoe Manutacturing Company Factory,	Sheboygan, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin	
Section number / Page 3	-	

large basket nandle arch-shaped single light transom. These units were identical in size, shape, and design to the individual units that are still extant in the two flanking bays of the first story below, and a pair of them were then placed in each of the two flanking bays in the second story. These windows originally helped light this story's factory space, but all of these units have now been removed and replaced with modern units that have a small double hung window centered in them. The casings surrounding these second story windows are still intact, however, and they are sheathed in molded terra cotta. Terra cotta mullions separate the two window units in each of the flanking bays and these casings are surmounted by a denticulated molding that is placed just below the terminating cornice. A full-width terra cotta string course is placed above the window units and the facade is then terminated by a large elaborate terra cotta cornice that is treated as the cornice portion of a classical entablature. This cornice has a denticulated frieze that is surmounted by an ovoid-shaped molding decorated with an echinus and astragal design and the sorfit of this cornice is decorated with modificion blocks.

The one-nundred-and-eighty-foot-long north-racing side elevation of the factory is also the side elevation of the original factory pullding. Originally, this elevation faced onto a now-vanished alley and towards Sheboygan's first separate post office building (non-extant); today it faces onto a landscaped and blacktopped parking iot. This elevation is largely intact and it is two-stories in height and is seventeen-bays-wide. The first pay from the left (east) is a continuation of the front-facing east facade just described and it is identical in every particular save that it is narrower than the bays on the front. As a result, the pasement level contains just a single small double hung window unit and the first and second stories contain less wide versions of the window units described above.

The remaining portion of this elevation is one manifestation of the Astylistic Utilitarian form and it is asymmetrical in design and it is sided in cream brick that is faid in American bond. This wall rests on a partially exposed cut stone foundation that is surfaced with a now deteriorated coat or dement. All of existing window openings on this elevation are original and have concrete sills and flat-arched openings that are surmounted by wedge-snaped brick voussoirs. Each of the second, third and fourth bays from the left in the basement story of this portion of the north elevation contains a single small one-over-one-light window. The first story of the second bay then contains a single one-over-one-light double nung wood sash window of normal height and pairs of these windows are placed in the first stories of the third and fourth bays. The fifth bay then contains two somewhat smaller separate windows or the same design while the sixth bay contains a flat-arched loading door opening that contains the original panelled sliding wooden door

The current owner plans to replace these modern windows with ones that replicate the design of the originals.

^{*} The fifth day originally contained two such openings, but these have now been filled with brick. There are no other pasement level openings on this elevation.

united States Department or the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company Factory, Sneboygan, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin Section number ____7 ___ Page ____4

which is surmounted by a single light transom above. The first story of the seventh through the courteenth bay from the left each contains a single small original square-shaped one-light window. The identical window opening in the fifteenth bay has now been filled with brick and a modern steel entrance door that is reached by ascending a filight of five metal stairs has been placed in a new opening that was offset below and to the right of the original window. A similar change resulted in the closing of the original window opening in the sixteenth bay as well, and this opening was then replaced with a flat-arched loading door opening that contains a modern overhead type sectional door. The first story's seventeenth and last bay originally contained a large semi-circular-arched loading door opening that was matched by one in the same position on the opposite south-racing elevation of the original building. A large sign now fills the semi-circular-arched upper portion of this opening and the remainder has now been replaced by two modern metal and glass windows and an entrance door.

The second stories of the north-racing elevation's bays two through seventeen also each contain a single small original square-shaped one-light window of the type described above, the only exceptions being bays three and eleven, which are now filled with ventilators instead of windows. A corpelled brick stringcourse is then placed several feet above the heads of these windows and the simple brick parapet above is then surmounted by terra cotta coping of standard design. Four small brick chimneys interrupt this coping and they are placed between the first and second, fifth and sixth, tenth and eleventh, and fifteenth and sixteenth bays from the left.

The rear west-facing elevation of the original factory is strictly utilitarian in design and it is unadorned save for two one-story prick puttress, one of which is placed at either end of the elevation. This elevation has no openings and the parapet that terminates it and that hides the shed roof that shelters this part of the factory steps down in three stages to the south.

Originally, the south-facing elevation of the original pullding was almost identical with the north-facing elevation just described, but the 1909 addition along Eighth Street covered over the first four right-hand bays (east) and a later addition in 1971 covered over the remaining portion of the second story and six more bays of the first story. The semi-circular-arched loading dock opening in the seventeenth bay from the right has also now been filled with concrete block, so what remains of the original elevation is limited to the small intact square-shaped first-story window openings in bays eleven through sixteen.

The completion of the 1916 addition to the factory resulted in a "U"-snaped building. The three-sided courtyard that was created had its open end racing west and the powerhouse of the factory was then located in the courtyard in a separate tree-standing one-story building of its own, a building whose location was marked by the presence of the still extant low-foot-tall circular plan tapered brick chimney.

United States Department of the interior National Park Service

Then, in 1973, the second story of the courtyard and the south two-thirds of the first story were enclosed in a new flat-roofed addition whose windowless walls are made of concrete plock faid in a stack bond. This left only the northern third of the first story intact of the courtyard intact and this space was then turned into a loading zone.

The rear west-facing elevation of the 1909 addition is now almost totally hidden by the 1916 and 1973 additions. The rear elevation of 1916 addition to the factory is windowless and featureless and its parapet wall is topped with terms cotta coping.

The 180-foot-long south-racing elevation of the factory is also the main elevation of the Astylistic Utilitarian form design Virginia Avenue addition, most or which was built in 1916. This elevation is seventeen-pays-wide, is two-stories in neight above a full basement story, and it is pilastered and sided in dark prown brick. Each pay is three-stories in neight (the first and second stories plus the basement story) and is inset into the main wall surface of the elevation. This leaves a thin strip of wall surface between each pay, and these strips are then treated as pilaster strips complete with pilaster bases that are made of a stepped course of prick course. The recession of the bays into the main wall surface is also expressed by stepping several courses of prick at the pottom and the top of each bay. All of these pays are of the same width, save only the first pay from the left (west), which is wider because it has a garage door opening placed in its first story. As a result, this is the only pay on this elevation that does not have a pasement story and the flat-arched window group in the second story is also the only one that contains three, rather than two windows.

Aside from the triple window group in the second story of the first pay, all the others on this elevation are grouped in pairs and every group has a concrete sill. The original windows on this elevation were recently replaced with modern units that have metal sash colored a dark brown and these units are all double hung with both the upper and lower sashes being divided into two lights by the use of horizontal muntins. The paired window units used in pays z - 17 of the first two stories are identical in neight and are considerably talter than those used in the basement story. In the latter story, window units of different heights had to be used because the slope of the site is most noticeable on this elevation. This slope also necessitated the use of windows of different sizes in some of the basement story window openings as well. Thus, in pays 2 - 12 of the basement story the window units used are less tall than the two in bay 13 and these two units are themselves less tail than the ones in pays 14 - 17. Also, in order to admit more light into

Fig. 15 It is the present intent of the current owner to remove the 1973 addition and to recover the now invisible powerhouse, which will be put to other uses.

The first rour bays from the right (Days Nos. 14-17) are actually the south-facing elevation of the 1906 addition. A thin line in the cornice at the fert edge of bay No. 14 marks the original west end of this elevation

United States Department of the interior National Park Service

NATLO	NAL	REGIS	TER OF	R HIL	RIGHTC BI	_ACES				
CONTI	YUAT	TUN S	HEET							
Jung :	Shoe	Manu	ractur	ing	Company	Factory,	Sheboygan,	Sheboygan	County,	Wisconsin
Section	ח הכ	umber		<u>t</u>	Page _	<u>5</u>				

the smaller Windows, a three-root-wide strip of earth was removed from in front of bays 2 - 12 and a concrete retaining wall topped by a metal hand rail was then used to shore up the resulting light well. This elevation is then surmounted by a stringcourse rashioned from a single course of corpelled brick which is itself surmounted by a corpelled cornice that is topped with terra cotta coping.

The east-racing Eighth Street racade of the ractory consists of the three-bay-wide main racade of the original 1906 building that has already peen described and the 100-root-long main tacade of the 1909 addition. This later facade is set back approximately one foot further from the abutting sidewalk than the sacade of the eariler Duliding and it is essentially identical in design and makes use or the same materials as the south-racing elevation of the 1916 addition that is described above. The 1909 radade, however, is ten-pays-wide rather than seventeen, its pays are all equal in width, and the slope of the site is gentle enough to permit all the Window units in the pasement story to be fully exposed and equal in height. Each story of these ten pays contains a paired group or the same type or modern window units that were described above, the only exception being the basement story of the first pay from the right (pay No. 10), which contains a fiat-arched entrance door opening instead or windows. This opening is original to the building and it now contains a pair or modern metal and glass doors rather than the original ones. The only other difference between this racade and the south-facing elevation is that here the original wooden sash double hung hine-over-hine-light windows or the addition are still intact behind the second story windows in pays 2 - 10.4

The interior of the factory building is, if anything, even more intact than the exterior. The front of the first story of the 1906 building contains the public portion of the factory. This area contains a centered entrance half, with the sample room of the company being located to its left (south) and the corporate offices to its right. The paired main entrance doors of the 1906 building open into a vestibule and one then ascends a flight of eight stairs to reach a broad hardwoodricored landing. Twin doors that open into an interior vestibule are then placed at the end or this landing and a large single-light transom is then placed above the doors. These doors are tramed in golden oak, as is the transom above, and each contain a single large light made or bevelled plate glass. Much of the wall surface or this entrance half is also panelled in the same golden oak. Oak skirtboards ascend besides the stairs and the large triangular-snaped spandrels above are faced in a glazed brown brick. These spandrels are then surmounted by a panelled golden oak walnscotting that consists of large rectangular panels that are placed within a simple moided framework of stiles, rails and muncins. These panels are arranged in a grid that is three-panels in height and they reach from the floor of the upper landing to the neight of the transom Dar. This grid also extends the length of the

^{&#}x27;it is the present intent of the current owner to either restore the missing windows or to replicate their original appearance using modern windows or similar appearance.

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

NATION.	AL K	EGISTER	OH.	HISTO	KIC 5	LACES					
CONTIN	UA'I'1(ON SHEE	'Ľ								
Jung S	noe :	Manutac	turi	ng Cor	mpany	Factory,	Sneboygan,	Sneboygan	County,	Wisconsin	
Section	n nui	mber	<u> </u>		Page						

nail, including the walls of the inner vestibule. The upper portion of the walls (that portion above the transom bar) is then plastered and papered and the ceiling of the entire nail is then also panelled in golden oak. This ceiling panelling consists of a repeated grid pattern that is made up of 9 (3 x 3) deeply correred panels, each group of nine being separated from the next by a large panelled beam. The ceiling and the panelled wainscotting just described are then continued into the inner vestibule as well, the bottom row of panels on the rear (west) wall of the vestibule being hidden bening a full-width built-in bak settee that reatures a large leather-covered cushion.

The upper part of the south wall of the inner vestibule is soild, but the upper part of the north wall of the vestibule is made up of a three-light transom. Entrance openings are then set into each of the two side walls of the inner vestibule, with the one on the left (south) opening into the sample room, and the one on the right (north) opening into the original corporate offices of the Jung Company. The sample room is a large room whose north and south walls are mostly panelled in the same tall golden oak walnscotting as the entrance hall. The east wall of the room consists mostly of windows that look out onto Eighth Street. The south wall, nowever, is mostly covered in glass-fronted display cabinets of the same height as the walnscotting on the other walls. The ceiling of this room is panelled with oak matchboarding that is entramed by oak crown moldings and by neavy panelled beams. Panels of oak also cover the single square post that is placed near the center of the room, this post forming a part of the general support system for the upper floors.

The former corporate offices take up the whole north side of the east front of this building and they consist or two equal-sized executive offices whose east walls are windows that look out onto Eighth Street and a much larger general office that takes up the rest of the space to the West. Both of the two equal-sized executive offices are paneled in walnscotting of the same height as the entrance half and the sample room, only this paneling is either stained or varnished a dark brown color. The upper portion of the west walls of these two offices is made up of a three-light transom that looks out onto the general office and a transom of identical design also forms the upper portion of the wall that separates the two offices. The upper portion of the north wall of the north office, nowever, features four panels of goldcolored leather upon which are centered professionally handpainted heraldic shields. These panels are then each edged with large exposed brass hallheads. Similar leather panels of a red oxblood color are round in the upper portion of the south wall of the south office and both offices feature elaporate, deeply coffered panelied ceilings as well. Pairs of original triple-light hanging lamp fixtures are also still in place in these offices. The north office, however, is also a corner office, and this superior status is reflected in this office's more elaborate paneling, which is based on a grid pattern that yields twice as many panels per square yard as does the grid pattern used on the panelling found everywhere else in these rooms.

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Jung Shoe manufacturing Company Factory, Sheboygan, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin Section number ____/ ___ Page ____8

The general office is treated much like the sample room and features golden oak wainscotting of the same color and pattern and a panelled ceiling of the same design. A small cashiers window is also set into the south wall of this room to the right of the entrance half opening, but the room's most distinguishing feature is the large safe that is set into this wall. This walk-in safe was built by Mosier & Company and its door features a cast iron surround of classical design that features clanking priasters with modified Corinthian Order capitals. These priasters then appear to support a broken curved pediment that reatures a tail swagged urn positioned between the broken sides.

The remainder of the the first story of the 1906 building has been partitioned off into various other rooms and its original use as a space for warehousing has been obscured as a result. The basement story and the second story, nowever, are in excellent original condition. The basement story has a concrete ricor, but stone foundation walls, and a ceiling that is supported by twin rows of massive tootsquare wood posts. The second story reatures hardwood floors, pilastered brick walls (the south wall of which still has its original but now covered window openings), and its south-sloping roof is supported by twin rows of posts that are smaller in dimension than those on the two lower floors.

The original interiors of the 1909 and 1916 additions are also still intact and in a superb state of preservation. When the 1916 addition was completed, the large rectifinear plan rooms on each story that resulted were compined with the existing rectilinear plan rooms that comprised each story of the 1909 addition. Each story created by combining the additions therefore became a single large "L"-plan room and it is these rooms that are visible today. The compined pasement story room has floors made of concrete, pliastered brick walls, and a wood ceiling that is supported by massive wood joists that are themselves supported by paired rows of massive foot-square wood posts that are crowned with cast iron capitals. The upper tloors also have pilastered prick walls, hardwood floors and wood ceiling joists that are supported by paired rows of wood posts and these posts also grow progressively smaller in diameter the higher one goes. The root of the 1916 addition then slopes visibly to the north towards the now enclosed courtyard. In addition, the original prick interior-exterior walls that once faced onto this courtyard are still in place on each floor and they still help to enclose the interior space.

None of the original factory equipment has survived except for a single belt-pulley drive that is placed against the north wall of the second story of the 1916 addition.

This interior is notable for its intact state and excellent condition, characteristics that apply equally to the exterior of the outlding as well. Thus, despite eighty years of continuous use, the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company factory building is now one of the most intact early twentieth century industrial buildings remaining in downtown Sheboygan.

8. Statement of Significance		
Certifying official has considered the other properties:nationally	-	_
Applicable National Register Criteria _	AB _X_CD	
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions)	ABCD	нн
Areas or Significance (enter categories from instructions) Architecture		
	Cultural Affiliation N/A	
Significant Person N/A	Architect/Bulider Weeks, William C. **	

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

<u>Significance</u>

The Jung Snoe Manufacturing Company factory building is being nominated to the National Register of Historic places (NRHP) for its local significance under National Register (NR) criterion C. More specifically, the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company factory building is being nominated because of its associations with the NR significance area of Architecture, a theme that is also identified in the State of Wisconsin's Cultural Resource Management Plan (CRMP). Research Centered on evaluating this building using the Neoclassical Revival style subsection of the Architectural Styles study unit and the Astylistic Utilitarian subsection of the Vernacular Forms study unit of the CRMP's Architecture Theme section and the Tanning and Leather Processing study unit of the CRMP's industry Theme section. The results of this research is detailed below and confirms that the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company factory building is locally significant under criterion C as a nighty intact example of early twentieth century factory design.

The original portion of the building was constructed in 1906 for Sheboygan businessmen Henry and Otto Jung. These men were prothers and they were the sons of Jacob Jung, a prominent Sheboygan wagon maker who had also been a founder of Sheboygan's first shoe manufacturing company; the Wolff-Jung Co., Ltd., in 1886. Henry and Otto Jung incorporated for the purpose of conducting a wholesale shoe business in 1892, under the name of the Jung Shoe Company. This was the first wholesale business in Sheboygan and its success encouraged the prothers to construct

^{*} Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company Inventory Research Form. Sheboygan County Landmarks, Ltd., 197/. In the collection of the Sheboygan County Historical Research Center, 518 Water Street, Sheboygan Falls, Wisconsin.

 $^{^{\}circ}$ ibid. Information included in a copy of an address given by Henry Jung in 1942. $^{+\circ}$ ibid.

 $^{^{++}}$ Dated and signed blueprints of the original drawings. In the possession of the successor firm of the office of W.C. weeks, in Snepoygan, Wisconsin.

United States Department of the Interior National Mark Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Jung Snee Manufacturing Company Factory, Sneboygan, Sneboygan County, Wisconsin
Section number ____8 ___ Page ___1

a pullding or their own in 1906, the first unit of the bullding that is the subject or this nomination. The lot these men purchased was located just south or the heart of Snepoygan's downtown commercial district and it fronted on Eighth Street, Sheboygan's principal commercial thoroughpare. For their architect, the brothers chose William C. Weeks, a Sheboygan native and a second generation architect who was the most prominent local architect or his day. The handsome Classical Revival style pullding that resulted was pullt as an office and a warehouse for the prother's wholesale operations but a decision to begin manufacturing shoes or their own led them to double the size of the building in 1909, utilizing an Astylistic Utilitarian form design developed by weeks. A second addition of the same design was then added in 1916 and the shoe manufacturing business was conducted in the resulting "U"-plan Duliding until the Jung firm closed its doors in 1968. The pullding has thus been associated with Sneboydan's small but long-lived snoe manufacturing industry for its entire existence and its continuous association with successive generations of the Jung family has been instrumental in helping to preserve it. The Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company factory is still in excellent, near original condition today, a prerequisite that is essential for vernacular form resources, and it is now Sheboydan's best and most intact example or the kind of downtown industrial building that was once a major source of pride for the city. The factory now stands vacant, but its current owner has blans to sensitively rehabilitate it for housing.

Historic Context

The growth of industry in the city of Sheboygan began in 1834 when William Paine erected a crude sawmill on the shore of the Sheboygan river midway between the Palis and the present day site of the city. Growth in the region was slow, however, despite the natural geographic advantages of Sheboygan's site at the point where the river emptied into Lake Michigan. Twenty years later, however, the advantages of the location and the settling of the surrounding territory created conditions that were favorable for the growth of industry and by 1912, when the following history of the industrial enterprises of Sheboygan was written, the city had become a major manufacturing center in Wisconsin.

Lumber was the first commercial article made and then the manufacture of shingles was but a single step further.

Since the small and very primitive beginning mentioned above, the city of Sheboygan has attained a high place among manufacturing cities, not only of the state but also the nation, for in the production of certain styles of chairs Sheboygan is the leader of all competitors. In 1868 the manufacture of chairs was begun and Sheboygan eventually acquired the sobriquet of the Chair City. She became famous as such the country over, and the civilized world for that matter, as her chairs are in universal demand. By 1891, Sheboygan was listed as a manufacturing center to be reckoned with when other industrial centers were considered. About this time some of the largest establishments in the country for

United States Department or the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Jung Snoe Manufacturing Company Factory, Sneboygan, Sneboygan County, Wisconsin Section number ____8 ___ Page ____4

the manufacture of enamelied goods (The Voltrath Company) were founded and from products (The Konter Co.), knit goods and various and numerous other articles began finding their way into the marts of the country from Sheboydan factories and mills. Prior to this, however, was one early establishment of the Gutsch prewery, in 1847, and the Roenitz tannery, in 1853, two industries that take front rank in their especial fields.

The American Hide & Beather Company, tanners with factories at 702-740 North water Street (non-extant) is one of the largest concerns of the kind in the country. It was established in 1853 by C.T. and william Roenitz, brothers. They had been in the United States but three years, and with a rew hundred dollars saved from their wages they engaged in tanning hides, employing one man. The business increased rapidly, nowever, and by 1874, the tannery was turning out eight thousand hides a year. In 1875 William Roenitz died and C.T. Roenitz became sole proprietor. Frank L. and Charles H. Roenitz, sons, became associated with their father in 1881. The firm name was then known as C.T. Roenitz and Sons. Forty men were then employed and about six hundred hides turned out each week. The company was incorporated in 1888 and capitalized at \$100,000.... C.T. Roenitz died in 1892, when Frank L. Roenitz succeeded his father as president. The business so increased by 1896 that the factories were turning out eleven hundred hides of leather per day and employing three hundred men. In that year the concern went into and formed a part of the trust known as the American Hide & Leather Company.

A short time after the Roenitz prothers started their tannery Christian Heyer began the business of tanning nides. This was in 1855. His capital amounted to \$400 and on his payroll were six men. In 1859 a partnership was effected by Mr. Heyer, with Theodore Zschetzsche. Between them they had \$2000. This combination continued until 1873, when Mr. Zschetzsche retired and began business for himself, being associated with his son, Carl L.**

The new firm was named Theodore Zschetzsche & Son and in 1874 the firm built a tannery of its own (non-extant). Later, Charles Zschetzsche assumed control and reorganized the company with his sons (Theodore and Fred) as co-partners under the name Zschetzsche and Sons Tannery. This firm was the forerunner of the Badger State Tanning Company, which became one of the largest tanneries in the region.

Business was started in a small way, but increased as transportation facilities improved and machinery was invented to increase production. In 1991, this plant was destroyed by fire, but was rebuilt by a corporation organized to properly finance the undertaking and to properly undertake the tanning business.

⁺⁺ Zillier, Carl (Ed.). <u>History of Spepoygan County Wisconsin: Past and Present</u>. Chicago: The S.J. Clarke Publishing Company, 1912, Vol. 1. Pgs. 305-306.

United States Department or the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company Factory, Sheboygan, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin Section number 8 Page 3

in 1908 the tannery was taken over by Armour & Company, who at that time, were entering this line of industry. Since then the history of the business has been one of Constant expansion and consistent development with the growth of the city.

On January 19, 1920, one of the most costly and spectacular files known in Sheboygan, destroyed the entire plant with contents, entailing a loss then estimated at over one and one-quarter million dollars, and throwing nundreds of men out of employment. Rebuilding started in April of 1921, upon a much larger scale than before—the present (1926) completed plant occupying a full block of ground space.

When the Zschetzsche tannery was taken over by Armour & Company in 1908, about 235 nands were employed, working approximately 400 hides per day. At the present time 11926; over 700 men and women are employed with a daily production or about 3000 nides.

Like many others employed in the tanning pusiness, the Aschetzsches also succumped for a time to the temptation to draw on their experience and produce finished leather goods as well. In 1883, Theodore Eschetzsche, Jacob Jung and Charles Wolff organized a corporation under the name of the Wolff-Jung Co. Atd. With a capital stock of \$30,000, each man contributing a third. The company was formed to manuracture men's poors and shoes. Zschetzsche, as has been stated above, was involved in the tanning pusiness. Wolff owned a retail side store at 530 N. Bightn Street and he also had a small shoe factory in the rear of his store where he made men's work snoes that he soid to the retail trade. Jacob Jung Sr. (1831-1905) was a carriage and wagon maker in Sheboygan who had served an apprenticeship in that trade in his pirthplace of Karisrune, Germany before coming first to Cleveland and then to Sheboygan in 1854. He soon bound work in his trade in the firm of Brothers & Jones but after working there just two-and-a-half months he wound up buying the failing tirm in partnership with Lawrence Artman. After Artman died in 1866, Jung became sole proprietor and by 1881 he was employing nine men and doing a business of about \$10,000 a year. - Jung continued the business until 1887, when he sold out to his sons, Jacob Jr., and William. By that time, Jung was a successful and respected local businessman whose carriage works at 829-835 Pennsylvania Avenue (NRHP -7/10/74) nad become a well-known area business.

Wolfr was expected to take charge of the new factory but the job proved beyond his capability and a succession of superintendents soon followed. In the meantime, Jung

⁺³ Sneboygan Press. "Tanning Business Started in 1874 by Theodore Eschetzsche." April 23, 1926, Section 2, Pg. 6. This complex was renamed the Badger State Tanning Co. and under its current name, the Armira Leather Company, it was determined eligible for inclusion in the MK - 8/20/85.

History of Northern Wisconsin. Unicago: The Western Historical Company, 1881, Pq. 983.

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

MATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Jung Snoe Manufacturing Company Factory, Sheboygan, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin
Section number 8 Page 4

withdrew from an active role in the firm, which was reorganized in 1886 as the Sheboygan Boot & Shoe Company, Inc. with first Theodore and then Carl Zschetzsche as president. Despite increasing the size of the factory in 1889, nowever, the company was never very successful and it finally closed its doors in 1898.

Thus ended the story of "the first poot and shoe factory in Sheboygan." The experience had, however, been an important one for Henry Jung, the third oldest son of Jacob Jung, Sr. Henry Jung was born in 1862 and he learned the blacksmith's trade in his father's carriage works, where he worked for rive years.

The Diacksmith's rire was hard on his eyes to the extent that he had to up his trade. He went to Milwaukee and took a bookkeeping course at the Spencerian Business College and upon graduation he got a position with the Great Western Knitting Company, first as a bookkeeper and later as a salesman for them on the road. After several years he came back to Sheboygan to take a position (as bookkeeper) at the newly organized Wolff-Jung Shoe Factory.

The many changes in the management of the factory and the fact that the size of the building and the operations were doubled, was soon proof enough for Henry that there was no future for him there and so he and his brother, Otto, started in a very small way a jobbing firm of shoes. Otto was a teller at the German Bank and did the book work and shipping after banking hours and evenings. His father, Jacob Jung, Sr. would not allow him to give up his job at the bank until they could prove to him that they could do business and make money at their new venture. ... By hard work and long hours the business grew and success was their reward. ... In the meantime, Jacob Jung, Sr. sold his interest in the wolff-Jung Company and the name was changed to Sheboygan Boot & Shoe Company.*

The initial success of the prothers was soon reflected in the creation of a new corporation.

The Jung Shoe Co. was incorporated on September 23, 1892 with a capital of \$10,000.00, the incorporators being Henry Jung, Otto Jung, and William Jung. The latter's shares were soon thereafter transferred to Alfred Jung, who had furnished the money but could not hold the stock because he was not of age. Neither of these brothers, however, took an active part in the business.

Our first location was at Pennsylvania and North 9th Street, where we had an office room in our prother's store and occupied part of the second floor of a warehouse on the alley back of the store.

²⁵ Zillier, Carl (Ed.). Op. Cit., Vol. 2, Pg. 544.

the Wolff, Jung, Zschetzsche Building Inventory Research Form. Sneboygan County Landmarks, Ltd., 1977. In the collection of the Sneboygan County Research Center, 518 Water Street, Sheboygan Falls, Wisconsin.

United States Department or the interior National Park Service

A few years later when we needed more room, our brothers added a third floor to the warehouse, and we then occupied the first and second floors at \$30.00 a month.

In 1901 we rented the old shoe factory building on Jefferson Avenue and North 8th Street now (1942) occupied by the Sellinger Glove Company. The building was 80 x 80 - three floors and basement, and we paid \$40.00 per month rent; we paid for necessary repairs and the owner paid taxes and insurance.

We remained in this place for five years or until 1906, when we decided to put up our own bullding on the present location. This bullding is the one on the alley, bulk 80, being used for office and warehouse purposes.

We were up to that time not in manufacturing, but were conducting strictly a wholesale business; incidentally the first wholesale business in Sheboygan. Three years later, in 1909, we decided to manufacture our own work shoes, and built the factory addition, 45 x 100 along 8th Street. The addition to the factory along Virginia Avenue, 50 x 135, and the boiler room and garage were erected seven years later, or in 1916.

Due to our very limited capital, the growth our business had been of necessity very slow. It was not until 1903 that we were able to increase our capital from \$10,000 to \$100,000. Subsequently, in 1916 it was increased to \$200,000 and in 1919 to \$300,000. When we started our business my brother Henry sold our goods on the road twelve months of the year by rail and by team, in the heat of the summer and the cold of the winter, six days a week, while I did the work at home, doing the shipping by day and the billing and bookkeeping by hight.

The creation of the manufacturing portion of the business was the occasion for the chartering of another corporation, the Sheboygan Shoe Company, which was owned and operated by the parent concern.

The two companies - Jung Snee Company and Sneboygan Shoe Co. - continued as corporations until September 30, 1937, at which time they were succeeded by the present Jung Shoe Mrg. Company, a partnership consisting of Otto Jung and his two sons, Otto Jung, Jr. and Edgar J. Jung. At that time, Henry Jung, co-founder of the firm with Otto Jung, retired from the Dusiness.

During the First World war, in 1918, the firm was awarded a sizable contract for army service shoes. When the Wisconsin State Home Guard was organized the Jung

^{+&#}x27; Jung, Otto. Remarks on the Occasion of the Fiftheth Anniversary of the Firm: September 3, 1942. Included in the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company Building inventory Research Form. Sheboygan County Landmarks, Ltd., 1977. In the collection of the Sheboygan County Historical Research Center, 518 water Street, Sheboygan Falls, Wisconsin.

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES	
CONTINUATION SHEET	
Jung Snoe Manutacturing Company Factory,	Sheboygan, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin
Section number 8 Page 5	

Shoe Mrg. Company supplied all the required service shoes to the state. During the Second World war the firm was again awarded a sizable contract for the manufacture of army service shoes in the first general procurement, and continued to receive increased monthly contracts until the end of the war in the Facilic. **

By 1953 the Jung Shoe Mrg. Company was manufacturing men's and boy's work shoes and nigh cuts and medium-priced dress shoes. The factory employed 200 workers, of whom about 70 were women, and the average daily output or the factory was about 1500 pairs per day, which were sold to the retail trade by a force of it traveliling salesmen. Sales continued to be strong throughout the 1950s and the 1960s. By the 1970s, though, the problem of foreign competition was becoming a serious one for the entire industry. Never-the-less, the Jung Company continued to rind profitable niones to fill and after renaming itself Sheboydan outdoor Footwear it even bullt a second plant in Oconto, Wisconsin in 1978. By 1982, nowever, the Sheboygan plant was employing just 125 persons and another 35 at the Uconto plant and annual production amounted to 250,000 pairs of snoes of all types. In a last effort to find more capital resources the company was sold to the New Holstein, Wisconsinpased MB Co., inc. in 1983, but a year later the Oconto plant was closed and the company operations were reconsolidated in Sneboygan. Finally, in 1988, the president or the company, Henry Jung, the grandson or Otto Jung, announced that the firm was closing its doors.

in a sense, the Jung family connection with Sheboygan's shoe industry lasted one more year, until the last Sheboygan-based shoe manufacturer, the Leverenz Shoe Company, rinarry closed its doors. "Leverenz Shoe Company was rounded in (April) 1919 by Clarence C. Leverenz, who was joined in partnership by his prother-in-law, Carl H. Esch, in 1921. Both men were sons-in-law of Henry Jung, who gave them \$5000 to start the company. Leverenz produced dress shoes to supplement the work poots made by Jung."19 The firm began by purchasing the building and machinery of the Twig Snee Company, located at 828 Alabama Avenue. Within a year an addition was built that doubled the floor space. "In 1935 a branch factory was established in New Holstien, Wisconsin, and a line or men's dress oxfords was manufactured at this plant. "49 In 1940, the company was incorporated. In 1941, the New Holstein plant was enlarged and in 1956 a third plant was opened in Valders, wisconsin and two years later the old Wolff-Jung factory was purchased for warehouse space. By 1969 the firm had grown from 25 employees to 405, sales had Climbed from \$237,000 in 1919 to \$7,000,000, and a new factory in New Holstein had replaced the original one. In 1973, the Alabama Avenue plant was closed and the operations there moved to a new plant in the Sheboygan industrial Park. By 1975, the nationwide recession forced

Leberman, J. E. <u>One aundred Years of Sneboydan: 1846-1946</u>. Sneboydan: 1953, Pgs. 135-136.

⁺ Peters, Gary. "Imports Stomp Out Footwear Industry." <u>Sheboygan Press</u>, January 29, 1989, Pg. 12.

Leberman, J. E. Up. Cit. Pgs. 141-142.

United States Department of the Interior Nacional Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Uning Shoe Manufacturing Company Factory, Sneboygan, Sneboygan County, Wisconsin
Section number _______ Page ______/

the closing of this new plant and even though sales reached \$14,000,000 by 1980, the handwriting was on the wall in the form of cheaper foreign imports and the firm finally closed its doors in 1989.

Thus, the building on the corner of Eighth Street and Virginia Avenue that is the subject of this nomination gave the company that built it almost eighty years of continuous service. This company, the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company, was one of Sheboygan's earliest, largest, and longest-lived shoe manufacturers and its continuous operational history under the leadership of successive generations of the Jung ramily was primarily responsible keeping the factory in such an excellent and original state of preservation.

Architecture

Late nineteenth and early twentieth century urban industrial buildings can be loosely divided into two types. One type consists or those industrial buildings whose design permits them to fit into the surrounding urban fabric by virtue of having similar scale and complimentary design reatures. A second type consists of those industrial pulldings whose strictly utilitarian design and large scale sets them abart from the surrounding community. Sheboydan has historically had examples or both types and the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company factory has always been one of the city's best examples of the first type. This is due in large part to the excertent Classical Revival style racade that was given to the original 1906 building by its architect, William C. Weeks. Weeks was born in Sneboygan in 1856 and was the son of Arvin L. Weeks (1810-ca.1888), who came to Sheboygan with this ramily in 1848 and "was one of the early architects and builders of the Chair City, and one of the most prominent during his lifetime."++ William C. Weeks then studied architecture with his rather and associated with him, and after the death of the tather, weeks then continued the firm and became one of the most prominent architects in the city in his turn.

By the time of his commission for the Jung prothers, weeks was at the peak of his mature career and the quality of this design illustrates the fact. Weeks succeeded in creating a design that was both modern and respectful of tradition at the same time, an excellent image for a still young firm. The genesis of the overall design of the factory is atypical for such a building and may be the result of a fortunate coincidence. So far as is known, the Jung prothers did not initially plan to engage in manufacturing, but were instead looking for more spacious quarters for their wholesaling operation, a more typically "downtown" activity around the turn-of-the-century than that of large-scale shoe manufacturing. The totally unadorned north side elevation of Week's design is also typical or other downtown commercial buildings of that time and place and this too suggests that week's original

Portrait and Biographical Record of Sheboydan County, Wisconsin. Chicago: Excelsion Publishing Company, 1894. Pgs. 585-586.

United States Department of the interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company Factory, Sneboygan, Sneboygan County, Wisconsin Section number ____8 ___ Page ___8

commission was to design a handsome, soper downtown commercial building that would blend in with the other two and three-story commercial buildings located just a block north on Highth Street.

Thus, when the Jung prothers made the decision to engage in manufacturing three years later, weeks gave them a very different and more styllsh Astyllstic. Utilitarian form design for the Eighth Street radade of the new addition than the one he had used previously on the side elevations of the warehouse. The resulting hybrid design managed to blend in well with the area in the immediate vicinity of the ractory, which at the time was a polyglot mix of commercial, residential, and industrial uses. This is partly due to the architect's use of prown brick rather than the ubiquitous cream brick as a wall cladding material and it is also due to weeks's good sense of proportions, which created a utilitarian design that was still a good match for the Classical Revival style main radade of the older building.

Unfortunately, much of the context that could have provided a better understanding of this design has now been lost. At the time the Jung factory and its 1909 addition were built there was another older factory located directly across Eighth Street and the entire area that is now bounded by Pennsylvania Avenue, South Eighth Avenue and the shore of the Sheboygan River was then filled with commercial and industrial buildings that were all swept away in a wave of recent redevelopment activity in this area.

A prier survey of inquestrial pulldings in Sheboygan undertaken for this nomination revealed many important buildings but found none that have the same kind or mix of nigh style and vernacular design. Today, the only factory buildings in the vicinity that date from the same period as the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company factory are the Astylistic Utilitarian form rectilinear plan two-story steel or reinforced concrete frame factory buildings located at 502 S. Ninth Street (the Black Cat Textile Company - 1916) and the building at 915 S. Eighth Street. Both of these buildings have a high degree of integrity and they may very well be eligible for inclusion in the NRHP on their own merits. Never-the-less, these are straightforward Astylistic Utilitarian form buildings that make little attempt to relate to the other pulldings that surround them. A petter basis of comparison is actually rurnished by the Wolff-Jung Snoe Company factory located at bil S. Eighth Street a block to the north. This nighty intact victorian period Astylistic Utilitarian form three-story building was built by Jung brother's father, Jacob Jung, 5r., ca.1886, and it represents a conscious attempt to pulle a factory building within a the context or a late nineteenth century downtown retail area.

Despite its unusual history, the Jung Shoe Manufacturing Company ractory building's rine design, its high degree of exterior and interior integrity, its retention of

⁻⁻ The period of significance of this building is considered to be bounded by the dates of construction of the original building and its two subsequent additions.

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES							
CONTINUATION SHEET							
Jung Shoe Manuracturing Company Factory,	sneboygan,	Sneboygan	County,	Wisconsin			
Section number 8 Page 9	-						

much of its excellent historic interiors, and its outstanding condition make it one of Sheboygan's finest examples of both Classical Revival style and Astylistic Utilitarian form design. The degree of integrity is especially important because intact historic buildings of any type in Sheboygan's downtown commercial district are now rare and are getting rarer.

Archeological Potential

The earliest Sanborn-Perris Maps of this block are dated 1884, 1887 and 1891 and it these all show earlier houses located on this lot. Nothing is known of their appearance, nowever, and it is nightly unlikely the remains of any sort or from any period survived the extensive excavation activity that accompanied the construction of the factory buildings.

d. Major Bibliographical References	
Dated and signed blueprints of the origina successor firm of the office of W.C. Weeks	
Jung, Airred. "History of Former Sellinge Wolff, Jung, Eschetzsche Building Inventor Landmarks, Ltd., 1977.	-
Previous documentation on file (NPS):preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) nas been requested	<u>X</u> See continuation sheet
previously listed in the National Register previously determined eligible by the National Register designated a National Historic Landmark recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey # recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #	Primary location of additional data: _X_State Historic preservation officeother State agencyfederal agencyLocal governmentOniversityOther Specify repository:
1U. Geographica: Data	
Acreage or property <u>Less than one acre</u>	
UTM References A 1/6 4/4/2/5/8/U 4/8/4/3/9/1/U B Zone Easting Northing C / //// // // // // // // // // // U	Zone Easting Northing
Verbal Boundary Description	
Block 182, Original Plat. Lots 10 - 12.	
	See continuation sheet
Boundary Justification	
-	
These boundaries enclose all the rand nisto building.	orically associated with the factory
	See continuation sneet
11. Form Prepared By	
name/title	
organization Madison, Wisconsin 53/03	date <u>uctober 3, 1991</u>
street & number 1311 Morrison Street	
city or townMadison	state Wi Zip code 53703

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

Major Bibliographical References Continued

Jung, Otto. "Remarks on the Occasion of the Fiftheth Anniversary of the Firm: September 3, 1942." Included in the Jung Snoe Manufacturing Company Building Inventory Research Form. Sheboygan County Landmarks, Ltd., 1977.

Jung Snoe Manufacturing Company Inventory Research Form. Sneboygan County Landmarks, Ltd., 1977.

Leberman, J. E. One Hundred Years of Sheboygan: 1846-1946. Sheboygan: 1953.

Peters, Gary. "Imports Stomp Out Footwear Industry." <u>Sheboygan Press</u>, January 29, 1989.

Portrait and Biographical Record of Sheboygan County, Wisconsin. Chicago: Excelsion Publishing Company, 1894.

Sanborn-Perris Fire Insurance Maps of Sneboygan. Sanborn-Perris Map Co., New York, NY. 1884, 1887, 1891.

Sheboygan Press. April 23, 1926.

Wolff, Jung, Eschetzsche Building Inventory Research Form. Sneboygan County Landmarks, Ltd., 1977.

wyatt, Barbara (Ed.). <u>Cultural Resource Management in Wisconsin</u>. Madison: Historic Preservation Division, State Historical Society of Wisconsin, 1986. Vol. 2.

Zillier, Carl (Ed.). <u>History of Sneboygan County Wisconsin: Past and Present</u>. Chicago: The S.J. Clarke Publishing Company, 1912, Vols. 1 & 2.

History of Northern Wisconsin. Chicago: The Western Historical Comapny, 1881.